
VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE / TOWN OF WESTPORT
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION

Town of Westport Community Room
5387 Mary Lake Road
April 9, 2019 6:00 PM

Agendas may change prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
Please check the posting board at the Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street,

Waunakee, Wisconsin for the current agenda.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL:  Ken Sipsma, Dean Grosskopf, Eileen Bruskewitz, Brad Zeman, Brian 
Malich, Tim Black

MINUTES

1 March 12, 2019

PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

NEW BUSINESS

1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current 
Use), Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport

2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to be Located in the Kilkenny Farms 
West Commercial Center at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and 
County Highway Q

3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request from Kilkenny Farms 
West, LLC to approve a General Development Plan (GDP) for Kilkenny 
Farms West Commercial Center at the southwest corner of Woodland Drive 
and County Highway Q

4 Discuss and take action on a Certified Survey Map for Kilkenny Farms West 
Commercial Center at the southwest corner of Woodland Drive and County 
Highway Q

1 of 153



5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on Request by The Laurel Apartment 
Complex, Kilkenny Commons, for a Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the 
Maximum Height Limit for Portions of the Gabled Roof

6 Discuss and Take Action on Site Plan/Specific Implementation Plan for The 
Laurel Apartment Complex, Kilkenny Commons

7 Discussion of HyVee Specific Implementation Plan and Request for 
Conditional Use Permit

ADJOURN

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the 
meeting to be in an accessible location or format should contact the municipal clerk at (608) 850-8500, 500 West Main Street, Waunakee, 
Wisconsin, at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to 
accommodate each request.

VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
TOWN OF WESTPORT BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission may attend this meeting. No action will be 
taken by the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission at this meeting.

Next scheduled meeting is 5/14/2019 6:00:00 PM.

2 of 153



VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE/TOWN OF WESTPORT 
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Town of Westport Community Room 
5387 Mary Lake Road, Town of Westport 

March 12, 2019 6:00 PM 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:04 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
Present:  Ken Sipsma, Eileen Bruskewitz, Brad Zeman, Brian Malich, 
Absent:  Tim Black, Dean Grosskopf 
Also Present:  Tom Wilson, Kevin Even, Tracy Meinholz, Bryan Kleinmaier, Ed Freer, Dennis 
Steinkraus, Bill & Cyndi Kennedy, Karen Wilke, John Drury, Madison Graf, Dave Gulsick, David Korb, 
Hannah Korb, Steve Jacquot, Keenan Korb, Melanie Lee, Pat Teslaw, Kyle Adams, Arnold & Jean Bye, 
Mark & Mary Ripp, Joanne Koster, Jason Ford, Bree Cooper, Max Jacobson, Pete Hebsch, Jerry & 
Monica Paffenroth, Dan O’Callighan. 
 
MINUTES 
 
1 September 11, 2018 
2 December 11, 2018 

Motion Zeman, second by Bruskewitz, to approve the minutes of the September and December 
2018 meetings. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a Request by Drumlin Ridge Farm Vineyards 

LLC to Amend the Existing Conditional Use Permit for 6000 River Road 
Mr. Wilson presented the proposed changes to the CUP documents and went over some of the 
concerns raised by the neighbors. The public hearing was opened at 6:15 p.m. Pat Teslaw, Mark 
& Mary Ripp, Arnold Bye, Joanne Koster, and Jerry Paffenroth registered as opposed to the 
changes. Karen Wilke, Hannah Korb, Steve Jacquot, Keenan Korb registered in support. There 
were also several emails and letters submitted in support of the proposal and some opposed that 
were noted for the record.  The public hearing was closed at 6:27 p.m. Motion Bruskewitz, 
second Zeman, to approve the amendment to the CUP based on findings noted in the proposed 
revised agreement that shows the proposal meets the Village Code CUP standards, and subject to 
1) meeting all Village Codes 2) the 5 year review period stays in place 3) staff to further 
investigate neighbor complaints, make recommendations for mitigation, and to report back to the 
JPC if further action is needed to compel action. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a Request by Wisconsin Scaryland to Extend the 

Original Conditional Use Permit for 5305 County Highway M for an Additional Two Years 
Mr. Wilson presented the proposal to extend the CUP for an additional two years. The public 
hearing was opened at 6:51 p.m. No one present wished to speak. The public hearing was closed 
at 6:53 p.m. Motion Zeman, second Bruskewitz, to approve the 2 year extension based on 

Page 1 of 3MINUTES-1 March 12, 2019

3 of 153



meeting the standards for an extension contained in the current CUP document. Motion carried 4-
0. 

 
3 Westport Commercial Development Design Guidelines Discussion/Recommendation 

Motion Bruskewitz, second Malich, to acknowledge the use of and recommend approval subject 
to minor revisions as may be necessary to correct errors. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on Woodland Crest General Development Plan and 

Zoning Related to the Annexation Petition 
Village Attorney, Bryan Kleinmaier, presented the proposed GDP and zoning related to the 
development. The public hearing was opened at 7:01 p.m. Bill Kennedy asked for clarification on 
the convenience store component. The public hearing was closed at 7:03 p.m. Motion Zeman, 
second Bruskewitz, to recommend Village Board approval of the rezone and GDP, subject to any 
changes by the Village Attorney and Village Engineer including the limit of uses for Lot 1 to a 
grocery store and convenience store. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
2 Discuss and Take Action on Annexation Petition, Preliminary Plat, and Final Plat for 

Woodland Crest 
Bryan Kleinmaier presented the proposal for development of phase 1 to include the extension of 
Simon Crestway, pedestrian paths, Sara Lane improvements, water main extension across CTH 
Q, and a signalized intersection at Simon Crestway and Woodland Drive. Motion Malich, second 
Bruskewitz, to recommend approval of the annexation petition, preliminary plat and final plat, to 
Village Board, subject to all staff concerns resolved to the satisfaction of the Village Engineer. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

 
3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on an Amendment to the Kilkenny Commons 

General Development Plan for Setbacks 
Staff explained that this GDP amendment will only reduce the setback on one lot and will allow 
staff to work with the applicant on sidewalk issues requested by the Village Plan Commission. 
The public hearing was opened at 7:14 p.m. No one present wished to speak. The public hearing 
was closed at 7:16 p.m. Motion Malich, second Bruskewitz, to recommend approval of the GDP 
amendment to the Village Board subject to final adjustments approved by the Utility Manager, 
Village Attorney, and Village Engineer. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
4 Discuss and Take Action on Specific Implementation Plan for The Laurel at Kilkenny 

Multi-Family Development 
 Staff stated that the Village PC deferred action till April to allow the applicant to apply for the 

required CUP for a height exception and work with staff on outstanding issues with the SIP. No 
action taken. 

 
5 Initial Consultation, Rezone to Allow Duplex Condominium on single Family Lot, Lot 15 

Rankin Lane, Town of Westport 
 Mr. Wilson stated that the Town PC had directed the applicant to meet with the neighbors prior to 

making a submittal. No action taken. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion Malich, second Bruskewitz, to adjourn the meeting at 7:25 p.m. Motion carried. 

Page 2 of 3MINUTES-1 March 12, 2019

4 of 153



 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
Tracy Meinholz, Joint Plan Commission Secretary 

Page 3 of 3MINUTES-1 March 12, 2019

5 of 153



JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/09/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), 
Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport

PREVIOUS ACTION: None

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The applicant would like to adjust the size of three adjacent lots located on CTH 
K for estate planning purposes. Staff will need to review the lots and determine the appropriate 
zoning for each.

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None. This is for consult only.

Page 1 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

6 of 153



STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TOWN OF WESTPORT

REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
Kennedy Administration Building

Community Meeting Room
5387 Mary Lake Road

Town of Westport, Wisconsin

Monday, April 8, 2019   7:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment On Matters Not On the Agenda

3. Approve Minutes.
For the 3/11/19 meeting minutes. 

4. Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Uses),
Meffert/Pineview, 5964 and 6000 CTH K

The Mefferts would like to take the three parcels they have along CTH K, which include an
open parcel, their home, and the Pineview Vet Clinic and Hospital, and recreate them in a size
and zoning classification for each which makes sense.  They have the appropriate zoning now
for all, but would really like to size the vet facility parcel to better fit the use and buildings. 
This would mean taking land from that parcel and adding it to the smaller parcel which is
sandwiched between the home and vet facility.  There is a previous land division for the home
site which did restrict the property to no further land division, so that is something to take in to
consideration.  Right now it is arguable whether this sandwiched parcel is buildable based on
its size, these previous restrictions, and because it appears it might have been purchased by the
owners of the home lot from the neighboring parcel to add land needed to make sure the
buildings were legally placed.  You could clarify that buildability one way or the other here. 
All of the land except that on which the vet facility sits is zoned County RH-3 to allow rural
homes (8 acres minimum) and located in the Waunakee ETZ area.  The land between the
clinic and the home is farmed currently.  

If you do clarify that the middle parcel is buildable, then it should probably share a driveway
with the current home to limit access on CTH K, the no further land division or building site
creation restriction should carry through, and we may want to them straighten the parcel
border to create a more appropriately and even sized lot rather than have two odd shaped lots
here.

The lands are within the Rural Preservation District of our Comprehensive Plan, which
provides that any non-farm development is not to have an adverse impact on adjoining farms. 
This land division and clarifying zoning would not impact access to the Ken Hellenbrand 220
acre farmed land north and east of these parcels.

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\190408MM.wpd
0401191534

Page 2 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

7 of 153



RECOMMENDATION:  This is a consult so no action is to be taken but please advise the
owners of concerns.

5. Park Committee Report/Items for Action
Terry, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work.

6. Historic Preservation Committee Report/Items for Action
Joe, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work. 

7. Waunakee/Westport Joint Planning Committee Report/Items for Action
 An oral report will be provided as necessary.

8. Middleton/Westport Joint Zoning Committee Report/Items for Action
An oral report will be provided as necessary.

9. Miscellaneous/Forthcoming Events
An oral report will be provided as necessary. 

10. Adjourn

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\190408MM.wpd
0401191534

Page 3 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

8 of 153



 

 

 

 

Letter of Intent 
 
 

Randy and Laura Meffert are trying to complete some estate planning for their home property and 
business that is located on County Trunk Highway “K”.  They currently own 3 parcels, the veterinary 
clinic parcel, their home parcel and a small piece of land that was purchased between the 2 parcels.  
Currently there is the existing veterinary clinic and kennels on the far western part of their land and 
their existing House and a couple of sheds/garage located toward the far eastern part of their land.  
There is a large gap of land between the 2 existing structures that the Meffert’s had always intended 
to create an additional residential parcel.  As part of the estate planning, they also would like to make 
the veterinary clinic parcel smaller for when Laura retires and they sell the business. 
 
The proposed rezone and CSM request would modify/solidify the Veterinary Clinic parcel and zoning, 
square up and give the Meffert’s existing home and buildings more room for side and rear yards, and 
would create 1 new residential lot between the existing structures.  It is understood that a new 
driveway would most likely not be approved by the county and a shared driveway would be necessary 
for the is new lots access. 
 
The proposed veterinary clinic parcel would be zoned Commercial and would be 3.10 acres.  the 
proposed new residential lot would be zoned A-1 and would be 6.19 acres.  The Meffert’s existing 
home site would also be zoned A-1 and would be 7.06 acres.   
 
There are no plans for changes to any of the properties at this time.  At a later date, the new 
residential lot could be sold off and a new owner would need to apply for building permits at that time. 

 

104A WEST MAIN STREET, WAUNAKEE, WI 53597 

NOA T. PRIEVE  and CHRIS W. ADAMS 
PHONE: 1‐608‐255‐5705  WEB: WILLIAMSONSURVEYING.COM 

Page 4 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

9 of 153



Page 5 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

10 of 153



Page 6 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

11 of 153



Page 7 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

12 of 153



Page 8 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

13 of 153



Page 9 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

14 of 153



NA, ParcelText

Page 10 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

15 of 153

Owner
Polygon Line

Owner
Polygon Line

Owner
Polygon Line



JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE:  Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to be Located in the Kilkenny Farms West Commercial 
Center at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Attached is the SIP for the Festival Foods grocery store. No action is required.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None at this time, but the Joint Plan Commission should provide the 
applicant feedback on the proposed plans.

ATTACHMENT(S): Festival Foods narrative and conceptual renderings

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608)849-6276

Page 1 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

16 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


proposed retaining wall signage 

Page 2 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

17 of 153



front elevation 

Page 3 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

18 of 153



Festival Foods 
HOLMEN, WISCONSIN 

New Store 
store entry 

Page 4 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

19 of 153



Festival Foods 
HOLMEN, WISCONSIN 

New Store 
seating / seasonal display 

Page 5 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

20 of 153



Festival Foods 
HOLMEN, WISCONSIN 

New Store 
wine & spirits entry 

Page 6 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

21 of 153



Festival Foods 
HOLMEN, WISCONSIN 

New Store 

Page 7 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

22 of 153



Festival Foods 
HOLMEN, WISCONSIN 

New Store 

Page 8 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

23 of 153



EL. 128'-0"
T/ MASONRY

STN-1

CLR-1

CMU-1

CMU-2

CLR-2

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

CLR-1

MP-1

MP-2

CLR-1

STN-1

CLR-1

CMU-2

EL. 128'-0"
T/ MASONRY

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

WP-1

CLR-1

STN-1

MP-2

CLR-1

CMU-1

CMU-2

CLR-2

CMU-2

STN-1

CLR-1

EL. 128'-0"
T/ MASONRY

ENCLOSURE W/ PLASTIC PRIVACY 
SLATS LOADING DOCK GUARDRAIL (TYP.)

CLR-1

CMU-1

CMU-2

CLR-2

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

STN-1

CMU-1

CMU-2

CLR-2

CMU-2

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 131'-4"
T/ WALL

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

CMU-1

CMU-2

CLR-2

CLR-1

EL. 131'-4"
T/ WALL

CLR-1

EL. 128'-0"
T/ MASONRY

EL. 120'-0"
T/ STONE

STN-1

SIGNAGE OVER METAL 
MESH PANEL

MP-2

CLR-1

MP-1

CLR-1

SIGNAGE OVER METAL 
MESH PANEL

WP-1

CLR-1

MP-2

CLR-1
EL. 132'-4"
T/ ROOF

LANDSCAPE PLANTER 
AND SEATING AREA

A301b
2

A301b
4

A301b
5

A301b
3

A301b
1

PRELIMINARY

Project No.

Sheet:

Date:

Th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
of

 
So

m
er

vi
lle

, I
nc

.  
Pe

rm
iss

io
n 

or
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

em
ai

lin
g:

 P
la

nr
eq

ue
st

s@
so

m
er

vi
lle

in
c.

co
m

Re
vi

si
on

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

design
matterssm

So
m

er
vi

lle
, I

nc
.

c

1/25/2019 1:09:01 PM

SK
O

G
E

N
'S

 F
E

ST
IV

A
L 

FO
O

D
S

N
E

W
 S

TO
R

E
 F

O
R

:

W
A
U
N
A
K
EE

, W
IS

C
O

N
SI

N

2/20/19

A301a

20
19

-

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

BACK ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

MARK DESCRIPTION

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
KAWNEER TRIFAB VERSAGLAZE 451T OR EQUAL
2" x 4 1/2" MINIMUM DIMENSION (PROVIDE CALCULATIONS
FOR EACH OPENING)
ANODIZED ALUMINUM (CLEAR)
1" THERMALLY BROKEN LOW E GLAZING

NOTE:
THE MATERIALS LISTED BELOW ARE THE BASIS OF DESIGN.
SUBCONTRACTORS MAY SUBMIT ALTERNATE  MATERIALS. HOWEVER,
IT IS THE ARCHITECT'S OPTION TO REJECT OR APPROVE ANY OF THE
ALTERNATES SUBMITTED.

SPLIT-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SPLIT-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - CHARCOAL GREY TBD

CMU-1

SMOOTH-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SMOOTH-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - WARM LIGHT GREY TBD

CMU-2

CHARCOAL METAL COPING AND CANOPY PAINT
FACTORY FINISH
UNACLAD "TBD"

CLR-1

SILVER METAL COPING / CORNICE / ROOFING / FLASHING / VENTED SOFFIT
FACTORY FINISH
UNACLAD "TBD"

CLR-2

STONE
BUECHEL STONE CORP.
FOND DU LAC COUNTRY SQUIRE

STN-1

METAL WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM HORIZONTAL CORRUGATED WALL PANEL
SILVER

MP-1

METAL WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM HORIZONTAL FLUSH WALL PANEL
GREEN

MP-2

WOOD WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM WALL PANEL W/ WOOD GRAIN FINISH

WP-1

Page 9 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

24 of 153



5'-0"

6
'-0

"

1
0

'-1
 1

/2
"

30'-3"

1
'-6

"

11'-4"

1
'-8

"

1
0

'-2
"

1'-2"

1
4

'-5
 1

/2
"

1
0

'-2
"

1'-9" 1'-9"

2
'-7

"
1

'-4
"

3
'-2

 1
/2

"
8
"

2
'-6

"

17'-3 1/2"

6
'-0

"

7'-7 1/2"

8'-10 1/2"

7'-8 1/2"

1
4

'-0
"

6"

9
"

2'-6"

1
'-8

"

4'-2"

13'-1 1/2"

9
'-6

"

PRELIMINARY

Project No.

Sheet:

Date:

Th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
of

 
So

m
er

vi
lle

, I
nc

.  
Pe

rm
iss

io
n 

or
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

em
ai

lin
g:

 P
la

nr
eq

ue
st

s@
so

m
er

vi
lle

in
c.

co
m

Re
vi

si
on

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

design
matterssm

So
m

er
vi

lle
, I

nc
.

c

1/25/2019 1:09:51 PM

SK
O

G
E

N
'S

 F
E

ST
IV

A
L 

FO
O

D
S

N
E

W
 S

TO
R

E
 F

O
R

:

V
ER

O
N

A
, W

IS
C

O
N

SI
N

6797

1/25/19

A301b

20
19

-

A301b
1/2" = 1'-0"

2

A301b
1/2" = 1'-0"

4

A301b
1/2" = 1'-0"

5

SIGN ELEVATION - PRIMARY, ENTRANCE

SIGN ELEVATION - SECONDARY

SIGN ELEVATION - WINE & SPIRITS ENTRANCE

A301b
1/2" = 1'-0"

3 SIGN ELEVATION - EXIT

(APPROXIMATELY 55.1 SF)

(APPROXIMATELY 178.9 SF)

(APPROXIMATELY 6.9 SF) (APPROXIMATELY 330.3 SF) A301b
1/2" = 1'-0"

1 SIGN ELEVATION - BOOMERANG LOGO
(APPROXIMATELY 35 SF)

Page 10 of 10NEW BUSINESS-2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to...

25 of 153



JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request from Kilkenny Farms West, LLC to 
approve a General Development Plan (GDP) for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial Center at the 
southwest corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Attached is the GDP for consideration that would include a grocery store, 
convenience store and commercial/retail area.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with conditions.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to recommend approval of the GDP to the Village Board with the 
condition that all staff comments are resolved to the satisfaction of the Village Engineer and Village 
Attorney.

ATTACHMENT(S): Kilkenny West GDP

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608)849-6276

Page 1 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

26 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


1

Tracy Meinholz

From: Brian Adler <waunakeefire@tds.net>
Sent: March 26, 2019 7:39 AM
To: Tracy Meinholz
Subject: Tech Staff Comments

Good morning Tracy, 
 
The Fire Department only has one concern in regards to the items that were on our Tech. Staff agenda. 
 
We would like to see Peaceful Valley Parkway renamed to S. Holiday Drive on the west side of Hwy Q. Because it lines up 
with S. Holiday, we believe it would make sense for all of the emergency services if S. Holiday just continued through all 
the way to Hwy Q. This prevents having two intersections of Peaceful Valley & Woodland Drive in town. 
 
We don’t see any problems in providing fire protection to either of the proposed grocery stores. 
 
Thanks! 
 
Capt. Brian Adler 
Waunakee FD 

Page 2 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

27 of 153



 
1702 PANKRATZ STREET, MADISON, WI 53704 

P (608) 242-7779  •  TF (800) 446-0679  •  F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\MSA Kilkenny West Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

 

Memo 
  

 

 To: Village of Waunakee Plan Commission 

 From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: Kilkenny West GDP 

 Date: April 1, 2019 
     
 

Request 

Applicant (Lone Silo North Addition, LLC) is requesting approval of a General Development Plan (GDP) to 
create a new road connecting Peaceful Valley Parkway to Holiday Drive and to develop the lands north 
and east of that road for a mix of uses. 
   
Background Information 

This site is part of a larger area for which development is planned and the Urban Service Area (USA) 
amendment has already been approved.   
 
Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

The proposed GDP would determine the zoning regulations for this site and is subject to Article IV – 
Planned Unit Development District.  The proposed CSM is subject to the subdivision ordinance. 
 
Consistency with the Village Comprehensive Plan 

The Plan identifies these lands as a combination of commercial use (near Hwy Q) and “Mixed Use”, which 
is specifically described as follows:  

West Village Gateway, West of Hwy Q 
a. This site, between Hwy Q and the proposed extension of South Holiday Drive, is suitable for commercial 

uses, multi-unit residential uses such as apartments or senior housing, or vertical mixed use buildings 
with upper floor residential and ground floor commercial. The boundary between this area and the 
adjacent Commercial land use designation along Hwy Q is not precisely defined, but it is the intent of 
this plan to avoid locating residential uses of any type directly adjacent to Hwy Q. The precise 
configuration of roads, parcels and uses should be figured out through the development process, 
during which a neighborhood plan will be required for this area. That plan should demonstrate an 
appropriate transition of uses from commercial use along the highway to lower-density residential 
use within the neighborhood. 

Page 3 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

28 of 153



Kilkenny West GDP 
April 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\MSA 
Kilkenny West Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

The Future Land Use Map shows this area with commercial use 
along Hwy Q and the aforementioned Mixed Use area west of 
that.  It shows a wavy dividing line between those two uses, 
reflecting uncertainty and flexibility regarding where and how 
residential uses may be introduced behind the primary Highway 
Q frontage. 

 

Analysis and Recommendations 

Land Use 

The GDP describes Lot 2 describes multi-family residential use.  
Lot 2 extends close to Hwy Q, set back about 80 feet behind a 
stormwater outlot.  This is not consistent with the comprehensive 
plan.  I recommend revision of the described uses for Lot 2 to 
indicate that any residential units will be set back from Highway 
Q behind a commercial use. 

Sidewalks 

Village ordinance Sec. 129-150 requires 5-foot sidewalks on both sides of all streets, or alternatives as 
approved by Village Board.  The GDP shows sidewalks along both sides of the proposed streets (including 
a multiuse path along the east side of the new collector street) but no pedestrian improvements along 
Hwy Q or Woodland Dr.  As this area developers, those sidewalks will be important connectors to existing 
development north and east of this site.  I recommend revision of the GDP to show sidewalks along Hwy 
Q and Woodland Dr.  

Landscaping 

The Comprehensive Plan describes the need for the transition of uses from commercial near Hwy Q to 
lower-density residential west of the new collector street.  The GDP shows a large commercial use with 
its loading and service functions facing that future neighborhood.  This is a concern.  The GDP notes 
Developer intent to building single family detached homes on those west lands, and to include a berm, 
fencing or landscaping between those homes and the collector street.  However, those lands are not part 
of this GDP and not subject to it.  I recommend that this GDP show a landscape buffer along the entire 
length of the building and parking areas on Lot 1 that will significantly reduce views of the building, loading 
docks and vehicle headlights from the arterial street (and the future residential uses across the street). 

Street Naming 

The proposed collector street is shown as Peaceful Valley Parkway, however most of this street runs north 
and south; only a small portion runs east west.  I recommend using S Holiday Drive as the name for this 
street, allowing the name transition to occur at Highway Q instead of at Woodland Dr. 

Retail Building Size Ordinance 

The design of large retail buildings is regulated by Sec. 133-19, which requires a conditional use permit 
over 50,000 SF and sets several standards and limits on those buildings, including: 

• 75,000 SF maximum size 
• Stormwater best management practices to maximize on-site infiltration 

Page 4 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

29 of 153



Kilkenny West GDP 
April 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\MSA 
Kilkenny West Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

• Maximum 70% impervious surface (this is also a requirement of PUD zoning) 
• 50% extra landscaping to screen and buffer large parking areas 
• Building design that relates in some way to landmark buildings in the village and that avoids stock 

building designs used in other communities 

The GDP states on Page 2 that any buildings over 50,000 SF ground floor area will not be subject to a 
conditional use approval.  I recommend removal of this language, to be replaced by a statement that such 
buildings are still subject to the requirements of Sec. 133-19. 

 
Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Planner  

 

Page 5 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

30 of 153



Page 6 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

31 of 153



Page 7 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

32 of 153



Page 8 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

33 of 153



Page 9 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

34 of 153



Page 10 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

35 of 153



Page 11 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

36 of 153



Page 12 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

37 of 153



Page 13 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

38 of 153



Page 14 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

39 of 153



Page 15 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

40 of 153



3.14.2019

Kilkenny West Commercial Center GDP 
60’ 120’

Attachment AAttachment A

Attachment A

Lot # Size
Gross Floor Area

(Max)
quantities reflect 1st floor only

Total Parking
Spaces

Parking Spaces
per 1000 sqft

Open
Space

Floor Area
Ratio

10,200 SF 37 3.62

67,177 SF 355 5.28

3 108,028 SF
2.48 AC

1 435,164 SF
9.99 AC

2 244,371 SF
5.61 AC

67,177 SF Footprint
355 Parking Spaces

10,200 SF Footprint
37 Parking Spaces

43,246 SF

157,115 SF 0.154

0.094

SITE UTILIZATION SUMMARY

NA NA NA NA NA

Peaceful Valley Parkway

P
eaceful Valley P

arkw
ay

C
ounty Q

Woodland Dr.

Lone Silo Lane

Lot 2
5.61 AC

Lot 1
9.99 AC

Lot 3
2.48 AC

Outlot 1
0.81 AC

Legend
Planned Building Footprint

Street/Parking

Plazas/Terraces

Open Space

Stormwater Retention

Property Line

Right-of-Way Line

Page 20 of 20NEW BUSINESS-3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

45 of 153



JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Discuss and take action on a Certified Survey Map for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial 
Center at the southwest corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Attached is the lot split for the proposed commercial development including the 
site for Festival Foods.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Recommend approval to the Village Board

ATTACHMENT(S): CSM and Staff Comments

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608)849-6276

Page 1 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

46 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


1

Tracy Meinholz

From: Brian Adler <waunakeefire@tds.net>
Sent: March 26, 2019 7:39 AM
To: Tracy Meinholz
Subject: Tech Staff Comments

Good morning Tracy, 
 
The Fire Department only has one concern in regards to the items that were on our Tech. Staff agenda. 
 
We would like to see Peaceful Valley Parkway renamed to S. Holiday Drive on the west side of Hwy Q. Because it lines up 
with S. Holiday, we believe it would make sense for all of the emergency services if S. Holiday just continued through all 
the way to Hwy Q. This prevents having two intersections of Peaceful Valley & Woodland Drive in town. 
 
We don’t see any problems in providing fire protection to either of the proposed grocery stores. 
 
Thanks! 
 
Capt. Brian Adler 
Waunakee FD 

Page 2 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

47 of 153



  
 

 
RKS:sjl\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2019 Site Plan Comments\3. Kilkenny West GDP_CSM\Kilkenny West CSM.docx 

March 28, 2019 
 
 
Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
500 West Main Street, P.O. Box 100 
Waunakee, WI  53597 
 
Re: Kilkenny West General Development Plan (GDP) and Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 Village of Waunakee (Village)  
 
Dear Kevin, 
 
We received a GDP document and CSM for the Kilkenny West development proposed at the 
southwest corner of Woodland Drive and CTH Q. While we understand others will be 
commenting on the GDP, we have the following comments on the CSM. 
 
Several of our comments are the same as previously submitted. These include the need to show 
existing right-of-way widths on CTH Q and Woodland Drive; showing the existing CSM 
numbers and lines that appeared on the first rendition of this map but were then left off their 
next rendition; and also clarifying ownership.  
 
Dane County’s online geographic information system (GIS) continues to show Dalmatian Farms 
LLC for the owner of Lot 2 of CSM 14048,  part of which is included in this new map. If there 
are two separate owners at the time of recording, then there should be two separate owners’ 
certificates of dedication.  
 
There are no proposed easements shown for utilities, cross-access, or drainage, all commonly 
shown on commercial CSMs of this type. The applicant should verify that the Village does not 
want any new easements dedicated as part of the CSM recording. Granted, they can be added 
later via separate recorded documents,  but having them on the map makes it easier for future 
users including utilities to know what easements are on the site and their locations relative to the 
lot lines.  
 
Finally, there is an existing access easement between CSM 9506 and  2378 that should be 
released because the extension of Peaceful Valley Parkway will render it no longer necessary.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

48 of 153



Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
Page 2 
March 28, 2019 

 
 

 
RKS:sjl\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2019 Site Plan Comments\3. Kilkenny West GDP_CSM\Kilkenny West CSM.docx 

We have attached the associated documents, marked up with the same comments for the reader’s 
convenience.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 
 
 
 
R. Kent Straus, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 
 
c/enc.: Todd Schmidt, Administrator, Village of Waunakee 
 Tim Herlitzka, General Manager, Village of Waunakee Utilities 
 Bryan Kleinmeier, Stafford Rosenbaum 
 Ed Freer, Graef 
 

Page 4 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

49 of 153



Page 5 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

50 of 153



Page 6 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

51 of 153



LOT 1
CSM 2378

LOT 2
CSM 1408

MISSING EXISTING RIGHT OF
WAY WIDTHS AND THEIR BASIS
(EXISTING CENTERLINE,
SECTION LINE, ETC.)  FOR
BOTH SIDES OF THE ROAD
WHEN DIFFERENT, FOR
WOODLAND DRIVE AND CTH Q
(PER 236.34)

THE FIRST RENDITION OF THIS MAP
SHOWED THE LOCATION OF EXISTING
CSM'S 2378 AND 14048. THEY WERE
SUBSEQUENTLY REMOVED AND SHOULD
BE PUT BACK ON THE MAP. 

CSM'S 9506 AND 14048 REFER TO AN
EXISTING INGRESS EGRESS EASEMENT 
IN THIS AREA. WILL IT OR HAS IT BEEN
RELEASED?

?

THIS MAP DOES NOT SHOW
ANY PROPOSED UTILITY OR
OTHER EASEMENTS. VERIFY
THAT THE VILLAGE DOES NOT
WANT ANY NEW EASEMENTS
ADDED AS PART OF THEIR
APPROVAL PROCESS.

Page 7 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

52 of 153



ACCESS DANE STILL LISTS THE OWNER OF LOT 2 OF CSM
14048 AS DALMATION FARMS LLC. THIS IS PART OF THIS
MAP. WILL THEIR OWNERSHIP BE TRANSFERRED PRIOR
TO THE RECORDING OF THIS SHEET? IF NOT THEN AN
ADDITIONAL OWNERS CERTIFICATE WILL BE REQUIRED.

Page 8 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

53 of 153



Page 9 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

54 of 153



Page 10 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

55 of 153



Page 11 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

56 of 153



Page 12 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

57 of 153



Page 13 of 13NEW BUSINESS-4 Discuss and take action on a Certified...

58 of 153



JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on Request by The Laurel Apartment Complex, 
Kilkenny Commons, for a Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Height Limit for Portions of 
the Gabled Roof

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The roof line exceeds the 45 foot maximum in some areas of the property. The 
highest being 52 feet.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the CUP.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion to approve the CUP for the height above 45 feet, but not to 
exceed 52 feet.

ATTACHMENT(S): Revised plans and staff comments

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608)849-6276

Page 1 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

59 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


 

2901 INTERNATIONAL LANE, SUITE 300, MADISON, WI 53704-3133 

P (608) 242-7779    TF (800) 446-0679    F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

 

Memo 

  
 

 To: Kevin Even, Village of Waunakee 

 From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: Laurel at Kilkenny, PIP and GDP amendment 

 Date: March 1, 2019 

     
 

Requests 

First applicant (Steve Brown Apartments) is requesting approval of a Precise Implementation Plan for Lot 2 of CSM 
No. 14357, part of Zone 5 of the Kilkenny Farms GDP, located east of Simon Crestway and south of Peaceful Valley 
Parkway.   The subject parcel is 154,206 SF (3.54 acres).  The proposed PIP features three residential buildings totaling 
about 136,155 SF; 82 units with a mix of 1-, 2-, and 3-bedroom units (147 total bedrooms); and 150 parking spaces 
(102 underground, 48 surface).  
A separate request from Kilkenny Farms, LLC would reduce the required building setback along Peaceful Valley 
Parkway, just for this site, from 25 feet to 10 feet.    

 

Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

 Kilkenny Farms GDP, as adopted March 18, 2013 and as amended September 10, 2018 

 Chapter 133, Article III, Division 9 – R-5 Multifamily Residential District 

 Chapter 133, Article VII – Traffic Visibility, Loading, Parking and Access 

 
Consistency with the Village Comprehensive Plan 

The Comprehensive Plan identifies this site as commercial.  Land uses in commercial areas in the plan “should be 
uses permitted in the Village’s C-1 and C-2 Districts.”  The C-1 district allows for multifamily housing as a conditional 
use.   The Village already approved an amendment to the Kilkenny Farms general development plan (GDP) in 2018 
to allow multifamily residential use on this site.   
The only inconsistency I observe between the proposal and the comprehensive plan is regarding sidewalks: “Policy 
2.2 (page 57): Wherever medium- to high- density residential is proposed, sidewalks should be installed connecting 
that site to other uses and areas.”  As described later in this memo, this site does not have enough sidewalks.   
 

Consistency with the Village Zoning Ordinance 

The Kilkenny Farms GDP addresses some aspects of the development, and is silent on others.  Items not 
addressed in the GDP default to the Village’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Land Use 
The September 2018 GDP amendment identifies this site for multifamily housing. 

Page 2 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

60 of 153



MEMO 
March 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

 
Building Area 
The September 2018 GDP amendment indicates a maximum first-floor area of 20,000 SF per building; the 
maximum proposed is 18,368.  This proposal will use 34% of the total 133,158 SF building footprint 
allotment for Area 5.    
 
Building Height 
The GDP does not address height.  The R-5 Multifamily Residential District allows for a maximum height 
of 45 feet for principal buildings, or up to 55 feet by conditional use permit with a few specific limitations 
on the square footage and street setback for height above 45 feet.  The proposed buildings all feature a 
parking level (10 feet floor-to-floor), three residential floors (12 ft, 11 ft, 9 ft), and a pitched roof (23 feet 
eave to peak, counted toward building height as 11.5 ft).  Because of the sloping site the parking level is 
completely underground on some sides (resulting in a building height of 43.5 feet) and exposed to various 
extents on others (resulting in averaged heights up to about 52 feet).  The building heights will require a 
conditional use permit.  The only part of the structure above 45 feet is the roof, and the roof complies 
with the various setback, area and use conditions in the ordinance.   
 
Building Setbacks 
The adopted GDP allows building setbacks of 25 feet along Peaceful Valley Parkway and 15 feet along 
other streets.  Along the south and east sides of this site the proposed roads are private roads rather than 
public right-of-way – the only setback requirement is 15 feet from the property line, which is in the middle 
of those roads.  The proposed buildings are at least 15 feet from Simon Crestway, as required, more than 
the required 25 feet from Peaceful Valley Parkway, and roughly 25 feet from the curb of the proposed 
private streets to the south and east.   
The request from Kilkenny Farms, LLC to amend the GDP to allow a building setback of 10 feet appears 
not to be necessary.  Note that Peaceful Valley Parkway was constructed close to the south edge of the 
right-of-way, no more than 8 feet away, and without any path or sidewalk.   
 
Sidewalks 
The GDP indicates that sidewalks and trails will be planned at the PIP stage of development.  There is an 
existing 8-foot sidewalk in the right-of-way along Simon Crestway.  The proposed site plan includes no 
other sidewalks around the edges of the site.  There are three connections between the buildings and off-
site walking routes: at the west entrance of the south building, a sidewalk to Simon Crestway between 
the west and north buildings, and from the east entrance of the north building out to the street corner.  
Only the west entrance of the south building offers a barrier-free connection to the street; the other two 
walking routes include steps.  The provisions for pedestrian access to, through, and past this site are 
inadequate.  Sidewalks on all four sides of the site and ADA-compliant connections to those sidewalks are 
preferred.  Note that Peaceful Valley Parkway was constructed without sidewalk on the south side and 
also without leaving enough space for a sidewalk.  Adding a sidewalk along that north side of the project  
would improve access along this block for all neighborhood resdents but would require some additional 
right-of-way dedication to achieve it. 
 
Parking 
The GDP requires 569 parking spaces in area 5, including under building and on-street spaces, but has no 
requirements specific to this site.  The proposed development has 102 underground spaces and 48 surface 
spaces (150 total).  The proposed private roads are 24 feet wide and no on-street parking is proposed or 

Page 3 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

61 of 153

tracy
Cross-Out

tracy
Highlight



MEMO 
March 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

counted.  The Village’s current parking ordinance requires 2 stalls for every dwelling unit, whereas the 
proposed development offers 1.83 parking spaces per unit and 1.02 spaces per bedroom.  The Plan 
Commission may grant exceptions to the parking standards if there is evidence of lesser need.  The mix of 
proposed unit sizes results in an average of 1.8 bedrooms per unit.  The Village has consented to 
reductions in required parking for several projects in recent years.  There have been discussion about 
revising the Village’s parking standards to require less parking.  One model is the City of Middleton 
ordinance, which requires 1.5 parking spaces for a one-bedroom unit and 2 for 2+ bedrooms.  By that 
ordinance, this development would be required to provide 149 parking spaces, and would be compliant 
with the ordinance.   
 

MSA Recommendation 

I recommend approval of the proposed PIP with the following conditions: 
1) Approve a conditional use permit for increased building height up to 55 feet, and consistent 

with the other standards in the ordinance. 
2) Approve an exception to the parking standards based on 1.5 spaces per one-bedroom unit 

and 2.0 spaces for other units. 
3) Add sidewalks around the east and south sides of the site, and show ADA-compliant 

connections from every building to the west sidewalk (enabling access to commercial uses 
west of this site). Add pedestrian connections from the buildings and/or through the parking 
lots to the east sidewalk.  A sidewalk is also encouraged along Peaceful Valley Parkway, 
recognizing that it likely requires additional right-of-way to achieve. 

4) Do not approve the requested GDP amendment to allow setback reduction from 25 feet to 
10 feet along Peaceful Valley Parkway.   It would be preferable to keep this relatively tall 
building further back from the street.  Any dedication of additional right-of-way to provide a 
sidewalk in this location could be coupled with a corresponding reduction in the required 
street setback.   

 

Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Consultant Planner 

 

Page 4 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

62 of 153



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

136911161719212223

3
N-A300

2
N-A300

1
N-A301

2
N-A301

W-2W-2 W-2W-1 W-2W-2 W-2 W-2

W-2W-2 W-2W-1 W-2W-2 W-2 W-2

W-2W-2 W-2W-1 W-2W-2 W-2 W-2

SHG-01

XTRM-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

STN-01

CSH-01

CSS-01

FNCT-01

RLG-01

SHG-01

XTRM-01

SDG-01

GTR-01

3
N-A301

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

ACEHJL
1

N-A300

W-4 W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4W-4 W-4 W-4

W-4W-4

W-4 W-4 W-2 W-4 W-4

W-4W-4W-2

W-2 W-4 W-4

SHG-01

GTR-01

STN-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

FNCT-01

SSR-01

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:10:54 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

N-A200

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
NORTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/8" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

 NORTH BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MARCH 19, 2019 | 13 

W-1 W-2

FINISH FLOOR2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

8' - 0" R.O.

2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

5' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-3

3'
 - 

6"
4'

 - 
6"

 R
.O

.

W-4

6'
 - 

0"
 R

.O
.

2'
 - 

0"

3' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-5
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

W-6
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

W-7
(NOT USED)

4'
 - 

0"
4'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:11:38 PM

EXTERIOR FINISH
PRODUCT LIST & WINDOW
SCHEDULE

N-A202

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
NORTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/4" = 1'-0"
WINDOW TYPES

WINDOW SCHEDULE

TYPE QTY.

WINDOW OPENING WINDOW TYPE FINISH

COMMENTSWIDTH HEIGHT
SILL

HEIGHT MANUFACTURER MODEL TYPE INTERIOR EXTERIOR
W-1 8 8' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Picture w/ Flanking Casements
W-2 54 5' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-3 3 5' - 0" 4' - 6" 3' - 6" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-4 30 3' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Single Casement

GENERAL NOTES: ALL MORTARS TO BE COLORED.  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FULL SCALE MOCK-UP OF ALL STONE/SIDING/BRICK COMBINATIONS (WITH MORTARS).

XTRM-01 EXTERIOR TRIM AND FASCIA LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

5.5" OUSIDE CORNERS,
2.5" INSIDE CORNERS,
BOTH ONE PIECE

CUSTOM

STN-01 STONE VENEER TBD  - - - TBD

SSR-01 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF PAC CLAD TITELOC PANEL TBD

SHG-01 ASPHALT SHINGLES TBD  - - - TBD

SDG-02 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE VERTICAL
SIDING

LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

SDG-01 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE LAP SIDING LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

RLG-01 RAILINGS AND HANDRAIL SUPERIOR
9100 SERIES, OPEN
DOUBLE TOP RAIL, USE
3/4" SQUARE PICKETS

TBD USE SUPERIOR 500 SERIES PIPE RAILING WHERE
REQUIRED

GTR-01 PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUTS TBD - - - TBD

FNCT-01 FOUNDATION WALL COATING TBD - - - TBD TO BE USED AT EXPOSED FOUNDATION WALLS
ABOVE GRADE, TYP.

CSS-01 CAST STONE SILL TBD - - - TBD

CSH-01 CAST STONE HEADER TBD - - - TBD

CD-01 COMPOSITE DECKING TREX TRANSCEND COLLECTION TBD

CODE ITEM MANUFACTURER DESCRIPTION COLOR NOTES

EXTERIOR MATERIAL PRODUCT LIST

No. Date Description

Page 5 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

63 of 153



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

1 2 4 7 10 13 15 17 19 21 22 23

3
N-A300

2
N-A300

1
N-A302

W-2W-2W-2
W-3

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1

W-1

W-1

W-2W-2W-2
W-3

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1

W-2W-2W-2
W-3

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1

SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

CSH-01

CSS-01

RLG-01

FNCT-01

SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

FNCT-01

3
N-A301

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

A B C F J K L
1

N-A300

W-4

W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4

W-4 W-2

W-2

W-2 W-2

W-2

W-2 W-4

W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4

W-4

SHG-01

GTR-01

STN-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

SSR-01

?

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:11:34 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

N-A201

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
NORTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/8" = 1'-0"1 SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"2 WEST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

NORTH BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MARCH 19, 2019 | 14 

Page 6 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

64 of 153



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

1581112

W-1W-3

W-1W-3 W-2 W-4

W-1W-3 W-2 W-4

W-2

STN-01

GTR-01

SHG-01

SSR-01SDG-01

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

ABDFGJLNRTUW

LOWER ROOF TRUSS BEARING
9' - 1 1/4"

W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-1W-2

W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-1

W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-2W-1

W-5 W-5W-5

SHG-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

XTRM-01

SDG-01

SSR-01

STN-01

CSH-01

CSS-01

RLG-01

STN-01

FNCT-01

SDG-01

SHG-01

XTRM-01

SSR-01

STN-01

STN-01

GTR-01

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:13:08 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

W-A200

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
WEST BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

3/32" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

WEST BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MARCH 19, 2019 | 15 

W-1 W-2

FINISH FLOOR2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

8' - 0" R.O.

2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

5' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-3

3'
 - 

6"
4'

 - 
6"

 R
.O

.

W-4

6'
 - 

0"
 R

.O
.

2'
 - 

0"

3' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-5
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

W-6
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

W-7
(NOT USED)

4'
 - 

0"
4'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:11:38 PM

EXTERIOR FINISH
PRODUCT LIST & WINDOW
SCHEDULE

N-A202

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
NORTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/4" = 1'-0"
WINDOW TYPES

WINDOW SCHEDULE

TYPE QTY.

WINDOW OPENING WINDOW TYPE FINISH

COMMENTSWIDTH HEIGHT
SILL

HEIGHT MANUFACTURER MODEL TYPE INTERIOR EXTERIOR
W-1 8 8' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Picture w/ Flanking Casements
W-2 54 5' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-3 3 5' - 0" 4' - 6" 3' - 6" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-4 30 3' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Single Casement

GENERAL NOTES: ALL MORTARS TO BE COLORED.  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FULL SCALE MOCK-UP OF ALL STONE/SIDING/BRICK COMBINATIONS (WITH MORTARS).

XTRM-01 EXTERIOR TRIM AND FASCIA LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

5.5" OUSIDE CORNERS,
2.5" INSIDE CORNERS,
BOTH ONE PIECE

CUSTOM

STN-01 STONE VENEER TBD  - - - TBD

SSR-01 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF PAC CLAD TITELOC PANEL TBD

SHG-01 ASPHALT SHINGLES TBD  - - - TBD

SDG-02 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE VERTICAL
SIDING

LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

SDG-01 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE LAP SIDING LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

RLG-01 RAILINGS AND HANDRAIL SUPERIOR
9100 SERIES, OPEN
DOUBLE TOP RAIL, USE
3/4" SQUARE PICKETS

TBD USE SUPERIOR 500 SERIES PIPE RAILING WHERE
REQUIRED

GTR-01 PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUTS TBD - - - TBD

FNCT-01 FOUNDATION WALL COATING TBD - - - TBD TO BE USED AT EXPOSED FOUNDATION WALLS
ABOVE GRADE, TYP.

CSS-01 CAST STONE SILL TBD - - - TBD

CSH-01 CAST STONE HEADER TBD - - - TBD

CD-01 COMPOSITE DECKING TREX TRANSCEND COLLECTION TBD

CODE ITEM MANUFACTURER DESCRIPTION COLOR NOTES

EXTERIOR MATERIAL PRODUCT LIST

No. Date Description

Page 7 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

65 of 153



T ectonic Cop yright 2007T ectonic Cop yright 2007T ectonic Cop yright 2007T ectonic Cop yright 2007T ectonic Cop yright 2007 T ectonic Cop yright 2007

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

1 3 8 9 12

LOWER ROOF TRUSS BEARING
9' - 1 1/4"

W-6 W-6 W-6 W-6

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-01

XTRM-01XTRM-01

SHG-01

SDG-01

STN-01

W-7

W-7
W-4

W-4

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

A B D F G J L Q T U W

LOWER ROOF TRUSS BEARING
9' - 1 1/4"

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1 W-2W-2 W-1

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1 W-2W-2 W-1

W-2 W-2 W-2 W-2 W-1 W-2W-2 W-1

W-3 W-3W-3

W-2 W-2

W-2 W-2

SDG-01

XTRM-01

SDG-02

GTR-01

SHG-01

SSR-01

STN-01

XTRM-01

CSH-01

CSS-01

RLG-01

SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

SDG-01

SHG-01

SSR-01

STN-01

FNCT-01

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:13:16 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

W-A201

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
WEST BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

3/32" = 1'-0"1 SOUTH ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"2 WEST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

WEST BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MARCH 19, 2019 | 16 

Page 8 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

66 of 153



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

12361012151720212223
3

S-A300
2

S-A300
1

S-A301
2

S-A301
3

S-A301
1

S-A302

W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2W-2
W-3W-3

W-2

W-1

W-1

W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2W-2
W-3W-3

W-2

W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2
W-3W-3

W-2

SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

SSR-01

CSH-01

CSS-01

FNCT-01
RLG-01

?

SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

ABCFJKL
1

S-A300

W-4

W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4

W-4 W-2

W-2

W-2 W-2

W-2

W-2 W-4

W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4

W-4

SHG-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

STN-01

SSR-01

?

FNCT-01

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:14:52 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

S-A200

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
SOUTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/8" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

SOUTH BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MARCH 19, 2019 | 17 

W-1 W-2

FINISH FLOOR2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

8' - 0" R.O.

2'
 - 

0"
6'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

5' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-3

3'
 - 

6"
4'

 - 
6"

 R
.O

.

W-4

6'
 - 

0"
 R

.O
.

2'
 - 

0"

3' - 0" R.O. 5' - 0" R.O.

W-5
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

W-6
(NOT USED)

3'
 - 

0"
5'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

W-7
(NOT USED)

4'
 - 

0"
4'

 - 
0"

 R
.O

.

3' - 0" R.O.

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:11:38 PM

EXTERIOR FINISH
PRODUCT LIST & WINDOW
SCHEDULE

N-A202

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
NORTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/4" = 1'-0"
WINDOW TYPES

WINDOW SCHEDULE

TYPE QTY.

WINDOW OPENING WINDOW TYPE FINISH

COMMENTSWIDTH HEIGHT
SILL

HEIGHT MANUFACTURER MODEL TYPE INTERIOR EXTERIOR
W-1 8 8' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Picture w/ Flanking Casements
W-2 54 5' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-3 3 5' - 0" 4' - 6" 3' - 6" Andersen 100 Series Twin Casement
W-4 30 3' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen 100 Series Single Casement

GENERAL NOTES: ALL MORTARS TO BE COLORED.  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FULL SCALE MOCK-UP OF ALL STONE/SIDING/BRICK COMBINATIONS (WITH MORTARS).

XTRM-01 EXTERIOR TRIM AND FASCIA LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

5.5" OUSIDE CORNERS,
2.5" INSIDE CORNERS,
BOTH ONE PIECE

CUSTOM

STN-01 STONE VENEER TBD  - - - TBD

SSR-01 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF PAC CLAD TITELOC PANEL TBD

SHG-01 ASPHALT SHINGLES TBD  - - - TBD

SDG-02 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE VERTICAL
SIDING

LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

SDG-01 PREFINISHED COMPOSITE LAP SIDING LP SMARTSIDE W/
DIAMOND KOTE

76 SERIES, TEXTURED,
7.84" ACTUAL WIDTH CUSTOM

RLG-01 RAILINGS AND HANDRAIL SUPERIOR
9100 SERIES, OPEN
DOUBLE TOP RAIL, USE
3/4" SQUARE PICKETS

TBD USE SUPERIOR 500 SERIES PIPE RAILING WHERE
REQUIRED

GTR-01 PREFINISHED METAL GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUTS TBD - - - TBD

FNCT-01 FOUNDATION WALL COATING TBD - - - TBD TO BE USED AT EXPOSED FOUNDATION WALLS
ABOVE GRADE, TYP.

CSS-01 CAST STONE SILL TBD - - - TBD

CSH-01 CAST STONE HEADER TBD - - - TBD

CD-01 COMPOSITE DECKING TREX TRANSCEND COLLECTION TBD

CODE ITEM MANUFACTURER DESCRIPTION COLOR NOTES

EXTERIOR MATERIAL PRODUCT LIST

No. Date Description

Page 9 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

67 of 153



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

1 2 3 4 7 9 13 16 18 21 23
3

S-A300
2

S-A300

W-2W-2 W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2

W-2W-2 W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2

W-2W-2 W-2W-2 W-2W-2W-2

SHG-01

XTRM-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

STN-01

RLG-01

FNCT-01

CSH-01

CSS-01
SHG-01

XTRM-01

STN-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

SDG-01

SSR-01

?

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

PARKING LEVEL P1
-10' - 6"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
31' - 4 7/8"

SECOND FLOOR
11' - 3 3/8"

THIRD FLOOR
22' - 5 1/4"

A B C E G J K L
1

S-A300

W-2W-4W-4 W-4W-4

W-4

W-4

W-2W-4W-4 W-4

W-2W-4W-4 W-4

W-4

W-4 W-4

W-4W-4

SHG-01

GTR-01

SDG-02

XTRM-01

STN-01

SDG-01

FNCT-01

SSR-01

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

00/00/0000

PHASE

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2019-03-19 1:15:24 PM

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

S-A201

THE LAUREL AT KILKENNY -
SOUTH BUILDING

1120 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

1/8" = 1'-0"1 SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"2 WEST ELEVATION

No. Date Description

SOUTH BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

& SIGNAGE ELEVATION  

MARCH 19, 2019 | 18 

FOYER
205-01

KITCHEN
205-02

LIVING ROOM
205-03

BEDROOM
205-04

BATHROOM
205-05

LAUNDRY ROOM
205-06

OUTDOOR PATIOMP FOYER
102-01KITCHEN

102-02

LIVING ROOM
102-03

CLOSET
102-04

CORRIDOR
102-05

BEDROOM
102-06

CLOSET
102-07

BA
TH

RO
O

M
10

2-
08

LAUNDRY ROOM
102-09

BEDROOM
102-10

CLOSET
102-11

BATHROOM
102-12

OUTDOOR PATIO MP

FOYER
100-01

KITCHEN
100-02

LIVING ROOM
100-03

DINING AREA
100-04

BEDROOM
100-05

CORRIDOR
100-06

LAUNDRY ROOM
100-07BATHROOM

100-08

BEDROOM
100-09

BEDROOM
100-11

CLOSET
100-12

BATHROOM
100-13

CLOSET
100-10

OUTDOOR PATIO

MP

STN-01

CSC-01

WOOD PANEL

WOOD BEAM

6"
9'

 - 
1"

8'
 - 

7"

6'
 - 

0"
11

"

2' - 6" 9' - 0" 2' - 6"

8' - 4"

1' - 6" 6" 5' - 0" 6" 1' - 6"

THE

Laurel
AT KILKENNY

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

2018-10-19

PRICING SET

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2018-11-08 9:44:04 AM

SAMPLE UNIT PLANS &
SIGNAGE ELEVATION

N-PAGE04

KILKENNY FARMS
NORTH BUILDING

1102 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

No. Date Description

1/4" = 1'-0"1 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (ONE-BEDROOM UNIT)
1/4" = 1'-0"2 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (TWO-BEDROOM UNIT)

1/4" = 1'-0"3 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (THREE-BEDROOM UNIT)

1/2" = 1'-0"4 SIGNAGE ELEVATION

FOYER
205-01

KITCHEN
205-02

LIVING ROOM
205-03

BEDROOM
205-04

BATHROOM
205-05

LAUNDRY ROOM
205-06

OUTDOOR PATIOMP FOYER
102-01KITCHEN

102-02

LIVING ROOM
102-03

CLOSET
102-04

CORRIDOR
102-05

BEDROOM
102-06

CLOSET
102-07

BA
TH

RO
O

M
10

2-
08

LAUNDRY ROOM
102-09

BEDROOM
102-10

CLOSET
102-11

BATHROOM
102-12

OUTDOOR PATIO MP

FOYER
100-01

KITCHEN
100-02

LIVING ROOM
100-03

DINING AREA
100-04

BEDROOM
100-05

CORRIDOR
100-06

LAUNDRY ROOM
100-07BATHROOM

100-08

BEDROOM
100-09

BEDROOM
100-11

CLOSET
100-12

BATHROOM
100-13

CLOSET
100-10

OUTDOOR PATIO

MP

STN-01

CSC-01

WOOD PANEL

WOOD BEAM

6"
9'

 - 
1"

8'
 - 

7"

6'
 - 

0"
11

"

2' - 6" 9' - 0" 2' - 6"

8' - 4"

1' - 6" 6" 5' - 0" 6" 1' - 6"

THE

Laurel
AT KILKENNY

20
2 

W
es

t G
or

ha
m

 S
t. 

 
M

ad
is

on
, W

I 5
37

03
  

Te
l: 

 6
08

.6
63

.5
10

0 
 

Fa
x:

 6
08

.6
63

.5
15

1 
w

w
w

.b
ro

w
nh

ou
se

de
si

gn
s.

co
m

Consultant

Sheet Number

Sheet Title

Drawn By:

Project No.:

Date:

Document Phase:

Checked By:

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by me or  under my direct 
supervision and that I am a duly Licensed 
Architect under the laws of the state of 
Wisconsin

Signed:

Name:

License No.:

Copyright                        by Brownhouse Designs, Inc. (All Rights Reserved)

Release

Project Title

Address

BROWNHOUSE

2018-10-19

PRICING SET

SHANE FRY

SHANE FRY

A-10754

PRELIMINARY       
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION

2018-11-08 9:44:04 AM

SAMPLE UNIT PLANS &
SIGNAGE ELEVATION

N-PAGE04

KILKENNY FARMS
NORTH BUILDING

1102 SIMON CRESTWAY
WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

No. Date Description

1/4" = 1'-0"1 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (ONE-BEDROOM UNIT)
1/4" = 1'-0"2 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (TWO-BEDROOM UNIT)

1/4" = 1'-0"3 SAMPLE UNIT PLANS (THREE-BEDROOM UNIT)

1/2" = 1'-0"4 SIGNAGE ELEVATION3

Page 10 of 10NEW BUSINESS-5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

68 of 153



JOIN PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE:  Discuss and Take Action on Site Plan/Specific Implementation Plan for The Laurel Apartment 
Complex, Kilkenny Commons

ISSUE SUMMARY: This item was tabled at the previous meeting pending the approval of a 
conditional use permit to exceed the height limit and further discussion with staff regarding sidewalk 
circulation and building elevations. Staff met with the applicant and has found a solution that allows 
for pedestrian access on all four sides of the building complex.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conditionally approve

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the SIP conditioned upon all staff comments resolved 
to the satisfaction of the Village Engineer.

ATTACHMENT(S): Revised plans and staff comments

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608)849-6276

Page 1 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

69 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


 

2901 INTERNATIONAL LANE, SUITE 300, MADISON, WI 53704-3133 

P (608) 242-7779    TF (800) 446-0679    F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

 

Memo 

  
 

 To: Kevin Even, Village of Waunakee 

 From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: Laurel at Kilkenny, PIP and GDP amendment 

 Date: March 1, 2019 

     
 

Requests 

First applicant (Steve Brown Apartments) is requesting approval of a Precise Implementation Plan for Lot 2 of CSM 
No. 14357, part of Zone 5 of the Kilkenny Farms GDP, located east of Simon Crestway and south of Peaceful Valley 
Parkway.   The subject parcel is 154,206 SF (3.54 acres).  The proposed PIP features three residential buildings totaling 
about 136,155 SF; 82 units with a mix of 1-, 2-, and 3-bedroom units (147 total bedrooms); and 150 parking spaces 
(102 underground, 48 surface).  
A separate request from Kilkenny Farms, LLC would reduce the required building setback along Peaceful Valley 
Parkway, just for this site, from 25 feet to 10 feet.    

 

Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

 Kilkenny Farms GDP, as adopted March 18, 2013 and as amended September 10, 2018 

 Chapter 133, Article III, Division 9 – R-5 Multifamily Residential District 

 Chapter 133, Article VII – Traffic Visibility, Loading, Parking and Access 

 
Consistency with the Village Comprehensive Plan 

The Comprehensive Plan identifies this site as commercial.  Land uses in commercial areas in the plan “should be 
uses permitted in the Village’s C-1 and C-2 Districts.”  The C-1 district allows for multifamily housing as a conditional 
use.   The Village already approved an amendment to the Kilkenny Farms general development plan (GDP) in 2018 
to allow multifamily residential use on this site.   
The only inconsistency I observe between the proposal and the comprehensive plan is regarding sidewalks: “Policy 
2.2 (page 57): Wherever medium- to high- density residential is proposed, sidewalks should be installed connecting 
that site to other uses and areas.”  As described later in this memo, this site does not have enough sidewalks.   
 

Consistency with the Village Zoning Ordinance 

The Kilkenny Farms GDP addresses some aspects of the development, and is silent on others.  Items not 
addressed in the GDP default to the Village’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Land Use 
The September 2018 GDP amendment identifies this site for multifamily housing. 

Page 2 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

70 of 153



MEMO 
March 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

 
Building Area 
The September 2018 GDP amendment indicates a maximum first-floor area of 20,000 SF per building; the 
maximum proposed is 18,368.  This proposal will use 34% of the total 133,158 SF building footprint 
allotment for Area 5.    
 
Building Height 
The GDP does not address height.  The R-5 Multifamily Residential District allows for a maximum height 
of 45 feet for principal buildings, or up to 55 feet by conditional use permit with a few specific limitations 
on the square footage and street setback for height above 45 feet.  The proposed buildings all feature a 
parking level (10 feet floor-to-floor), three residential floors (12 ft, 11 ft, 9 ft), and a pitched roof (23 feet 
eave to peak, counted toward building height as 11.5 ft).  Because of the sloping site the parking level is 
completely underground on some sides (resulting in a building height of 43.5 feet) and exposed to various 
extents on others (resulting in averaged heights up to about 52 feet).  The building heights will require a 
conditional use permit.  The only part of the structure above 45 feet is the roof, and the roof complies 
with the various setback, area and use conditions in the ordinance.   
 
Building Setbacks 
The adopted GDP allows building setbacks of 25 feet along Peaceful Valley Parkway and 15 feet along 
other streets.  Along the south and east sides of this site the proposed roads are private roads rather than 
public right-of-way – the only setback requirement is 15 feet from the property line, which is in the middle 
of those roads.  The proposed buildings are at least 15 feet from Simon Crestway, as required, more than 
the required 25 feet from Peaceful Valley Parkway, and roughly 25 feet from the curb of the proposed 
private streets to the south and east.   
The request from Kilkenny Farms, LLC to amend the GDP to allow a building setback of 10 feet appears 
not to be necessary.  Note that Peaceful Valley Parkway was constructed close to the south edge of the 
right-of-way, no more than 8 feet away, and without any path or sidewalk.   
 
Sidewalks 
The GDP indicates that sidewalks and trails will be planned at the PIP stage of development.  There is an 
existing 8-foot sidewalk in the right-of-way along Simon Crestway.  The proposed site plan includes no 
other sidewalks around the edges of the site.  There are three connections between the buildings and off-
site walking routes: at the west entrance of the south building, a sidewalk to Simon Crestway between 
the west and north buildings, and from the east entrance of the north building out to the street corner.  
Only the west entrance of the south building offers a barrier-free connection to the street; the other two 
walking routes include steps.  The provisions for pedestrian access to, through, and past this site are 
inadequate.  Sidewalks on all four sides of the site and ADA-compliant connections to those sidewalks are 
preferred.  Note that Peaceful Valley Parkway was constructed without sidewalk on the south side and 
also without leaving enough space for a sidewalk.  Adding a sidewalk along that north side of the project  
would improve access along this block for all neighborhood resdents but would require some additional 
right-of-way dedication to achieve it. 
 
Parking 
The GDP requires 569 parking spaces in area 5, including under building and on-street spaces, but has no 
requirements specific to this site.  The proposed development has 102 underground spaces and 48 surface 
spaces (150 total).  The proposed private roads are 24 feet wide and no on-street parking is proposed or 

Page 3 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

71 of 153

tracy
Cross-Out



MEMO 
March 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_3_1.docx 

counted.  The Village’s current parking ordinance requires 2 stalls for every dwelling unit, whereas the 
proposed development offers 1.83 parking spaces per unit and 1.02 spaces per bedroom.  The Plan 
Commission may grant exceptions to the parking standards if there is evidence of lesser need.  The mix of 
proposed unit sizes results in an average of 1.8 bedrooms per unit.  The Village has consented to 
reductions in required parking for several projects in recent years.  There have been discussion about 
revising the Village’s parking standards to require less parking.  One model is the City of Middleton 
ordinance, which requires 1.5 parking spaces for a one-bedroom unit and 2 for 2+ bedrooms.  By that 
ordinance, this development would be required to provide 149 parking spaces, and would be compliant 
with the ordinance.   
 

MSA Recommendation 

I recommend approval of the proposed PIP with the following conditions: 
1) Approve a conditional use permit for increased building height up to 55 feet, and consistent 

with the other standards in the ordinance. 
2) Approve an exception to the parking standards based on 1.5 spaces per one-bedroom unit 

and 2.0 spaces for other units. 
3) Add sidewalks around the east and south sides of the site, and show ADA-compliant 

connections from every building to the west sidewalk (enabling access to commercial uses 
west of this site). Add pedestrian connections from the buildings and/or through the parking 
lots to the east sidewalk.  A sidewalk is also encouraged along Peaceful Valley Parkway, 
recognizing that it likely requires additional right-of-way to achieve. 

4) Do not approve the requested GDP amendment to allow setback reduction from 25 feet to 
10 feet along Peaceful Valley Parkway.   It would be preferable to keep this relatively tall 
building further back from the street.  Any dedication of additional right-of-way to provide a 
sidewalk in this location could be coupled with a corresponding reduction in the required 
street setback.   

 

Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Consultant Planner 

 

Page 4 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

72 of 153



 
1702 PANKRATZ STREET, MADISON, WI 53704 

P (608) 242-7779  •  TF (800) 446-0679  •  F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

 

Memo 
  

 

 To: Village of Waunakee Plan Commission 

 From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: Laurel at Kilkenny, PIP  

 Date: April 1, 2019 
     
 

Requests 

Applicant (Steve Brown Apartments) is requesting approval of a Precise Implementation Plan for Lot 2 of 
CSM No. 14357, part of Zone 5 of the Kilkenny Farms GDP, located east of Simon Crestway and south of 
Peaceful Valley Parkway.   This memo is a supplement to the March 1 memo, addressing only the sidewalk 
plan. 
   
Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

Sidewalks are required under the Village’s subdivision ordinance.  Here is the entire relevant section: 
Sec. 129-150. - Sidewalks. 
(a) In all land divisions, the village board shall require the subdivider to construct five-foot wide 

concrete sidewalks on both sides of all local, collector, and arterial streets. Where, in the opinion of the 
plan commission and village board, the land division would be better served by an alternative form of 
pedestrian access, the village board may grant an exception to the sidewalk requirements. The 
construction of all sidewalks or alternative pedestrian access shall be in accordance with plans and 
standard specifications approved by the village engineer. 

(b) In addition, wider-than-standard sidewalks may be required by the village board in the vicinity of schools, 
commercial areas, and other places of public assemblage, and the village board may require the 
construction of sidewalks in locations other than required under this Code if such walks are necessary, 
in its opinion, for safe and adequate pedestrian circulation. 

(c) For all building permits issued between May 1 and October 15, sidewalks must be installed before an 
occupancy permit is issued. For permits issued after October 15 and before May 1, the sidewalks must 
be installed by the following June 15. 

 
Current conditions 
The GDP indicates that sidewalks and trails will be planned at the PIP stage of development.  There is an 
existing 8-foot sidewalk in the right-of-way along Simon Crestway.  The right-of-way along Peaceful Valley 
Parkway provides just 7 feet of space from the back of the curb to the right-of-way line, and no existing 
sidewalk.  There is a utility easement behind that right-of-way extending 10’ into the lot, and a set of utility 
lines running diagonally across the ROW and the easement (see next page). 

Page 5 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

73 of 153



Laurel at Kilkenny 
April 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

Site illustrations from the February 16, 2019 submittal.  Left illustration indicates setbacks, right 
illustration shows the utility lines. 
 

         
 

Page 6 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

74 of 153



Laurel at Kilkenny 
April 1, 2019  
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms\Laurel at 
Kilkenny\MSA Laurel at Kilkenny Memo 2019_4_1.docx 

 
 
Sidewalk Proposal 
It is my understanding that the applicant is proposing the following: 

A) West – maintain existing 8’ sidewalk along Simon Crestway (with ~8’ terrace) 
B) South – work with GDP developer (Tierney) to construct 5’ sidewalk on south side of street 
C) East – construct 5’ sidewalk along west side of Connery Cove (with 7’ terrace) 
D) North – construct 7’ sidewalk immediately behind curb 

 
Analysis 

1) Regarding the connection between Connery Cove and Simon Crestway along the south end 
of this site, I think having a connection on just one side of this street is acceptable due to the 
anticipated low traffic counts on this street, enabling safe crossings to the other side of the 
street. 

2) Regarding the sidewalk along Peaceful Valley Parkway, the sidewalk directly behind the curb 
is not the preferred design, but is an acceptable solution to provide the necessary pedestrian 
connection along the north edge of this block.  The preferred design would place the sidewalk 
behind the utility ROW, where it would have a more attractive appearance from the street, 
be more pleasant to walk along, be less complicated to maintain in the winter, and have the 
least conflict with the underground utility lines.  A 5’ sidewalk in this location would be 
approximately 17.5 feet from the building at the nearest point.  This is similar to the distance 
from the sidewalk to the building along Simon Crestway (~18’ at the nearest point). 

 
MSA Recommendation 

Approve the sidewalks as described above, with the following stipulations 
1) The sidewalk connecting Connery Cove to Simon Crestway must be constructed concurrent 

with the Laurel at Kilkenny sidewalks 
2) The sidewalk along Peaceful Valley Parkway should be reviewed by the utilities it may affect. 

 
Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Planner  

 

Page 7 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

75 of 153



Page 8 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

76 of 153



Page 9 of 64
N

EW
 BU

SIN
ESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

77 of 153



Page 10 of 64
N

EW
 BU

SIN
ESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

78 of 153



Page 11 of 64
N

EW
 BU

SIN
ESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

79 of 153



Page 12 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

80 of 153



Page 13 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

81 of 153



Page 14 of 64
N

EW
 BU

SIN
ESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

82 of 153



Page 15 of 64
N

EW
 BU

SIN
ESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

83 of 153



Page 16 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

84 of 153



Page 17 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

85 of 153



 
 

  1 

PERMANENT EASEMENT 
 
 For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Kilkenny 
Farms, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company 
(“Grantor”), does hereby convey, grant, transfer, and assign 
to the Village of Waunakee, Dane County, Wisconsin, a 
municipal corporation (“Grantee”), or its assigns, the 
perpetual right and easement hereinafter described. 
 
1. Property.  Grantor owns Lot Two (2) of Certified 
Survey Map No. 14357, recorded in the Dane County 
Register of Deeds Office in Volume 98 of Certified Survey 
Maps, pages 118-120, as Document No. 5273837, in the 
Village of Waunakee, Dane County, Wisconsin; corrected 
by Affidavit recorded September 11, 2017 as Document No. 
5356381 (the “Property”). 
 

2. Permanent Easement.  Subject to Section 5 below, 
Grantor does hereby convey, grant, transfer, and assign to Grantee a permanent right of 
way and easement over, under and across the premises described in and shown on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Easement Area”) for the 
following purposes: (i) to survey, construct, erect, install, maintain, inspect, operate, 
repair, move, remove, replace and reconstruct public utility facilities, including necessary 
underground and aboveground associated facilities, accessories and appurtenances; (ii) to 
establish and maintain a grade within the Easement Area in connection with the public 
utility facilities; and (iii) for ingress and egress to exercise the rights and privileges 
granted herein.  Grantee shall have the right to come upon the Easement Area at any time 
and for all purposes relating to the exercise of its rights hereunder. The use of the 
Easement Area may not be expanded and the burden on or intensity of use of the 
Easement Area may not be increased. 
 
 
3. Restrictions on Grantor.  Grantor shall not take any action or permit others to take 
any action that interferes with or is inconsistent with Grantee’s rights under this 
Easement provided, however, Grantee acknowledges that it understands that other 
utilities are currently located within the Easement Area and have easement rights therein.  
In particular, except as permitted under Section 5 below or as otherwise approved by 
Grantee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, 
Grantor shall not construct or install any building, fence or structure of any kind upon the 
Easement Area, and Grantor shall not drill in or upon, or change the grade of the 
Easement Area.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 

RETURN TO: 

Village Clerk 
Village of Waunakee 
500 W. Main Street 
Waunakee, WI 53597 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P.I.N. 

Part of 191/0809-172-4007-1 
 
 

Formatted: Space Before:  12 pt, Adjust
space between Latin and Asian text, Adjust
space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 18 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

86 of 153



 
 

  2 

4. Restoration.  Following any construction-related activity by Grantee in the 
Easement Area, Grantee shall restore, as best as practicable, the Easement Area to the 
condition it was in before such construction activities, except Grantee shall have no 
responsibility to restore, repair, or replace any material or activity prohibited by Section 
3. 
 
5. Consistent Uses Allowed.  Grantor may use the Easement Area for purposes that 
will not interfere with Grantee’s full enjoyment of the easement rights granted under this 
Agreement.  Specifically, Grantee has reviewed and approved Grantor’s installation and 
maintenance of the landscaping and related features and signage described and depicted 
on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Approved Improvements”).  
Grantor shall have the right to construct, install, maintain, repair and replace the 
Approved Improvements without further notice to or approval by Grantee, within both 
the Easement Area and within the existing 10’ wide public utility easement created by 
Document No. 5356381.    
 
6. Binding Effect and Assignability.  The Easement granted by this document shall 
run with the lands described herein, is binding upon the heirs, successors and assigns of 
Grantor, and shall benefit Grantee, its successors and assigns. 
 
7. Grantor Warranty.  Grantor represents and warrants that it is the sole owner of 
the Property, and that no other deed or easement prohibits Grantor from conveying, 
granting, transferring, or assigning to Grantee the rights granted under this Easement. 
 
8. Non-Use.  Non-use or limited use of the rights granted in this Easement shall not 
prevent the benefited party from later use of the rights to the fullest extent authorized. 
 
9. Authority.  Grantor represents and warrants that the undersigned signatory to this 
Easement has full power and authority to act on behalf of Grantor, and that all necessary 
and enabling resolutions have been enacted.  
 
10. Counterparts.  This Easement may be executed in one or more counterparts and 
upon execution and delivery by each of the parties hereto shall constitute one and the 
same enforceable agreement. 
 

[Signature pages follow] 
 
 

Page 19 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

87 of 153



 
 

  3 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument the day and 

year written below. 
 

GRANTOR: 
 
KILKENNY FARMS, LLC 

 
 
 
      By __________________________ 
      Donald C. Tierney, Manager 
 
 
 
      By __________________________ 
      Joanne K. Tierney, Manager 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
COUNTY OF DANE  
 
 Personally, came before me this _____ day of _______________, 2018, the above 
named Donald C. Tierney and Joanne K. Tierney, to me known to be the persons who 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same on behalf of Kilkenny 
Farms, LLC. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Print Name: _____________________ 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission: _________________ 
 

Page 20 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

88 of 153



 
 

  4 

 
      GRANTEE: 
 
      VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE 
 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
      Chris Zellner, Village President 
 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
      Julee Helt, Village Clerk 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
COUNTY OF DANE 
 
 Personally came before me this ______ day of ____________, 2018, the above-
named Chris Zellner and Julee Helt, Village President and Village Clerk for the Village 
of Waunakee, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same. 
 
______________________________  
______________________________ (Please print name) 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission Expires: __________ 
 
 
 
Attachment: Exhibit A – Legal Description and Map of Easement Area  
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
 
Bryan Kleinmaier 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900 
P.O. Box 1784 
Madison, WI  53701-1784 

Page 21 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

89 of 153



 
 

  5 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF EASEMENT AREA 
 
Being a part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map Number 14357, as recorded in Volume 98 of 
Certified Survey Maps, on Pages 118-120, as Document Number 5273837, Dane County 
Registry, located in the SW ¼ - NW ¼ of Section 17, Township 08 North, Range 09 East, 
Village of Waunakee, Dane County, Wisconsin, more fully described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 2; thence N89°32’05”W along the North 
line of said Lot 2, 228.11 feet; thence S00°27’55”W, 10.00 feet to a point of intersection 
with the southerly line of an existing 10’ wide public utility easement recorded as 
Document Number 5356381, Dane County Registry, said point also being the point of 
beginning; thence S31°30’37”W, 19.00 feet; thence S40°00’00”W, 15.70 feet; thence 
S89°59’14”W, 11.03 feet; thence N50°00’00”W, 19.67 feet to a point of intersection with 
the easterly line of said existing 10’ wide public utility easement; thence along the 
easterly, southeasterly, and southerly line of said easement for the next three (3) courses; 
1-thence N00°27’55”E, 0.96 feet to a point of curvature; 2-thence 23.57 feet along the arc 
of a curve to the right, having a radius of 15.00 feet, and a chord bearing N45°27’55”E, 
21.22 feet; 3-thence S89°32’05”E, 30.99 feet to the point of beginning.  Said description 
contains 905 square feet, more or less. 

 
  
 
 

Page 22 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

90 of 153



 
 

  6 CONSENT OF LIENHOLDERS 

Page 23 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

91 of 153



 
 

  7  

Page 24 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

92 of 153



 
 

  8 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Approved Improvements Formatted: Centered

Page 25 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

93 of 153



 
 

  9 

 
 

 The undersigned mortgagees or other lienholders, having an interest in the real 
estate subject to the transactions, transfers, and/or easements described herein, do hereby 

consent to the foregoing, and do hereby subordinate their interest in the same.   
 

 Dated:  ______________________, 2019. 
 
 

       
Lienholder Name 

 
 

By:       
Name:       
Title:       

 
 

Attest: 
 

       
Name:       
Title:       

 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 

 
COUNTY OF _________________ 

 
 Personally came before me this _____ day of ____________________, 2019, the 

above-named _________________________ and _________________________, of 
______________________________, to me known to be the _______________ and 

_______________ of _______________who executed the foregoing instrument as such 
officers of the corporation. 

 
      
Print name: ____________________ 

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My Commission:    

 

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Centered

Page 26 of 64NEW BUSINESS-6 Discuss and Take Action on Site...

94 of 153















































































JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 04/08/2019 

ITEM: OLD BUSINESS

TITLE: Discussion of HyVee Specific Implementation Plan and Request for Conditional Use Permit

ISSUE SUMMARY: The conditional use permit was noticed as a public hearing. The Village Board 
deferred action on the Woodland Crest General Development Plan on April 1st, therefore the public 
hearing for the Plan Commission will be deferred until the May Plan Commission meeting. This is on 
for discussion only.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None, but the Plan Commission should provide feedback on the 
proposed plan.

ATTACHMENT(S):  HyVee submittal

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

Page 1 of 21NEW BUSINESS-7 Discussion of HyVee Specific...

133 of 153

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com









































	Agenda
	March 12, 2019
	Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport
	Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to be Located in the Kilkenny Farms West Commercial Center at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
	tmpC91F.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	tmpC920.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	tmpC931.tmp
	Sheets
	A301a - COLORED ELEVATIONS
	A301b - SIGNAGE ELEVATIONS


	Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request from Kilkenny Farms West, LLC to approve a General Development Plan (GDP) for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial Center at the southwest corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
	tmpCD2B.tmp
	Request
	Background Information
	Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations
	Consistency with the Village Comprehensive Plan
	Analysis and Recommendations

	Discuss and take action on a Certified Survey Map for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial Center at the southwest corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
	Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on Request by The Laurel Apartment Complex, Kilkenny Commons, for a Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Height Limit for Portions of the Gabled Roof
	Discuss and Take Action on Site Plan/Specific Implementation Plan for The Laurel Apartment Complex, Kilkenny Commons
	tmpFFE0.tmp
	Requests
	Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations
	Analysis
	MSA Recommendation

	Discussion of HyVee Specific Implementation Plan and Request for Conditional Use Permit
	tmp5599.tmp
	04_Hy-Vee Waunakee - A6.0 - 180511
	Sheets
	A6.0 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	05_Hy-Vee Waunakee C-Store - A6.0 - 180504
	Sheets
	A6.0 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS




